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FILED
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA 2007 Jay -

ORLANDO DIVISION 4 PH 3 g

Moo U3 L-:{J'S TSI cprine
DELISA GAYLE, on behalf of herself and “éﬁf’ﬁ%&mrcf FLeqig
those similarly situated, FFLORin

Plaintiff,
vs. CASE NO.: (| T- V- 15-D0L 2L GI K

GUARDNOW, INC., a Florida Corporation,

Defendant. /

COMPLAINT AND DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff, DELISA GAYLE on behalf of herself and those similarly situated, by and through
the undersigned attorney, sue the Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC., a Florida Corporation, and
alleges:

1. Plaintiff, DELISA GAYLE, on behalf of herself and those similarly situated, was an
employee of Defendant and brings this action for unpaid minimum wages, declaratory relief, and
other relief under the Fair Labor Standards Act, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) (“FLSA”).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This action is brought under the FLSA to recover from Defendant minimum wages,
liquidated damages, and rcasonable attorneys’ fees and costs.

3. This Court has jurisdiction over Plaintiff’s claims pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §1331 and
the FLSA and the authority to grant declaratory relief under the FLSA pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §2201
et seq.

4. Plaintiff was an employee who worked for the Defendant within the last three years

in Orange County, Florida.
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5. Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC,, is a Florida Corporation that operates and
conducts business, among others, in Orange County, Florida and is therefore, within the jurisdiction
of this Court.

COVERAGE

6. At all material times relevant to this action, Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC., was an
enterprise covered by the FLSA, and as defined by 29 U.S.C. §203(r) and 203(s).

7. Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC. provides armed and unarmed security services for
commercial businesses, residential customers, construction sites, and international airports. See
www.GuardNow.com/services

8. Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC. provides security services in California, Texas,
Florida and many other states. See www.GuardNow.com/us/ca/

9. During Plaintiff’s employment with Defendant, Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC,,
earned more than $500,000 per year in gross sales. Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC., employed
over 100 employees and paid these employees plus earned a profit from their business.

10. During Plaintiffs’ employment, Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC., employed at least
two employees who handled goods, materials and supplies which travelled in interstate commerce,
such as, security scanning/screening devices, radio communication equipment, security weapons,
and other items used to run the business.

11.  Therefore, Defendant, GUARDNOW, INC,, is an enterprise covered by the FLSA,
and as defined by 29 U.S.C. §203(r) and 203(s).

PARTIES
12.  Plaintiff, DELISA GAYLE, worked for Defendant from approximately October

2016 to December 2016 as an hourly paid security guard at Defendant’s Orlando International
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Airport location.
13.  Plaintiff, DELISA GAYLE, was paid an hourly wage of $9.25 per hour.

GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

14. At all times relevant to this action, Defendant failed to comply with the FLSA
because Plaintiff and those similarly situated employees, performed services for Defendant for
which no provisions were made by Defendant to properly pay Plaintiff, and those similarly situated
employees, proper minimum wages.

15.  Specifically, Defendant did not compensate Plaintiff and those similarly situated
employees their final paychecks, and in some instances, for work performed in the entire month of
November,

16.  Based upon these above policies, Defendant has violated the FLSA by failing to pay
the minimum wages as described above.

17.  Upon information and belief, the records, to the extent any exist, concerning the
number of hours worked and amounts paid to Plaintiff, and those similarly situated employees, are
in the possession and custody of Defendant.

COUNT I - RECOVERY OF MINIMUM WAGE COMPENSATION

18.  Plaintiff reincorporates and readopts all allegations contained within Paragraphs 1-
17 above.

19.  Plaintiff, and those similarly situated employees, is entitled under the FLSA to be
paid the minimum wage for each hour worked during their employment with Defendant.

20.  During her employment with Defendant, Plaintiff was not paid the complete
minimum wage as a result of Defendant failing to provide a paycheck, direct deposit, or cash to

Plaintiff for work performed.



Case 6:17-cv-00015-ACC-GJK Document 1 Filed 01/04/17 Page 4 of 5 PagelD 4

21.  Specifically, Defendant ceased business operations in Florida, including its Orlando
International Airport location, without notice to employees. To that end, Defendant failed to provide
wages for, approximately, the final thirty days of its business operations in Florida.

22.  Plaintiff, and those similarly situated employees, made several attempts to retrieve
their compensation but was met with negative results.

23.  As a result of these actions, Plaintiff, and those similarly situated employees, were
not paid for all of the hours worked with Defendants in violation of the FLSA.

24,  Defendant willfully failed to pay Plaintiff the full minimum wage for all hours
worked contrary to 29 U.S.C. § 206.

25.  Defendant also failed to properly record and maintain records of all hours worked
and amounts paid to Plaintiff and other similarly situated employees in violation of the FLSA.

26.  Finally, Defendant failed to post the informational listings for Plaintiff and those
similarly situated employees in violation of the FLSA.

27.  Asa direct and proximate result of Defendant’s deliberate underpayment of wages,
Plaintiff has been damaged in the loss of minimum wages for one or more weeks of work with
Defendant.

28.  As a result of Defendant’s willful violation of the FLSA, Plaintiff is entitled to
liquidated damages.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

29.  Plaintiff, on behalf of herself and those similarly situated employees, demand a trial
by jury.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff, and those similarly situated employees, demand judgment against

Defendant for unpaid minimum wages, liquidated damages equal to the award or alternatively,
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awarding pre-judgment interest, reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in this action,

declaratory relief, and any and all further relief that this Court determines to be just and appropriate.

Dated this L [ ! day of December, 2016.

e

Matthew R. Gunter, Esq.

FBN 77459

Aaron M. Hines, Esq.

FBN 81690

Morgan & Morgan, P.A.

20 N. Orange Ave., 16th Floor

P.O. Box 4979

Orlando, FL 32802-4979

Telephone: (407) 420-1414

Facsimile: (407) 867-4791

Email: mgunter@forthepeople.com
ahines@forthepeople.com

Trial Attorneys for Plaintiff




Case 6:17-cv-00015-ACC-GJK Document 1-1 Filed 01/04/17 Page 1 of 1 PagelD 6

JS 44 {Rev. 11/15)

CIVIL COVER SHEET

The JS 44 civil cover sheel and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as

provided by local rules of court, This fonm, approved by the Judicial Conference of the

purpose of initiating the civil docket sheet.  (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NENT PAGE OF THIS FORM )

nited States in September 1974, is required for the use ot the Clerk of Court for the

L

DELISA GAYLE, on behalf of herself and those similarly situated,

Matthew R. Gunter, Esq. and Aaron Hines, Esq., Morgan & Morgan,
P.A., P.O.Box 4879, Crlando, FL 32802-4979, (407) 420-1414

(a) PLAINTIFFS

{b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintift’
(EXCEPT IN US. PLAINTIFF CASES,

(c) ANOIICYS (Firm Name, dddress, amd Teliphone Number)

DEFENDANTS
Orange County of Residence of First Listed Defendant

NOTE:
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED.

Attorneys (f Knowm

GUARDNOW, INC., a Florida Corporation,

(N US PLAINTIFF CASES ONLYY
[N LARD CONDEMNATION CASES, USLE THE LOCATION OF

I1. BI\SIS OF JURISDICTION (Placean "N in One Box Only) Il Cl'l'lZENSllll’ 0[“ PI{]NCIP.‘\L pt\[lT[ES (Phace an X Une Box for Plainti!
(For Diversity Cases Qalyi wad One Box for Defendanti
31 US Government A3 Federal Question PTF  DEF PTF DEF
Plaintify (V'S Government Nota Parny) Citizen of This Statce e 3 3 1 Incorporated or Prneipal Place a4 Xy
of Business [n This State
32 US. Government 3 4 Diversity Citizen of Anather State 02 3 2 lIncorporated ard Principal Place a5 A5
Derendan (Indicate Crezenshup of Parties in Item 111} of RBusiness In Another State
Citizen or Subject of a a3 1} Foreign Nation J6 16
Foreien Country
IV, NATURE OF SUIT {Place un "X in One Box Onlv)
| CONTRACT TORTS FORFEITURE/PENALTY BANKRUPTCY OTHER STATUTES ]
3 118 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY |77 625 Drug Related Seizure 2422 Appesl 28 USC 18X 1375 False Cluims Act
3 120 Marine 3 310 Aiplane 3 365 Pensonal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881 |7 423 Wahdrawal 3 376 Qui Tam (3] USC
130 Miller Act T 315 Airplane Product Product Liability 3 690 Other 23 USC 15T 372%an
3 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability 3 367 Health Care/ 3 4040 State Reapporitonnient
T3 150 Reconery of Overpayment | 71 320 Assault, Libel & Pharmaceutical PROPERTY RIGHTS M1 410 Anutrust
& Enforcemant of Judgment Slander Personal Injury 3 820 Copyrights 3 430 Banks and Banking
3 151 Medicare Act 3 330 Federal Employers’ Product Liability 3 830 Patemt 3 450 Commerce
71152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability ) 368 Asbestos Personal ¥ 840 Trademask 7 460 Deportation
Swudent Loans 3 340 Marnine lnjury Product 3 470 Racketeer Influcnced and
(Excludes Veterans) 3 345 Manne Product Liability LABOR SOCIALSECURITY Corrupt Crganizauuns
3 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability PERSONAL PROPERTY [ZF 710 Fair Labor Standards O s6l HIA (139310 3 480 Consunier Credat
of Veteran's Benefits 7 330 Motor Vehicle 7 370 Other Fraud Act ) 862 Hlick Lung (923) 7 490 Cable/Sm TV
T 160 Stockhulders’ Suits I 355 Motor Vehicle 3 371 Truth in Lending 23 720 LaborManagement O 863 DIWCDIWW (405(g)) | T 850 Sccurities Comumodities!
23 190 Other Contract Product Liability 33 380 Other Personal Relations 7 864 SSID Tule XVI Exchange
3195 Contract Product Lizkilny - |7 360 Other Persenal Property Dumage I 740 Railway Labar Act ) 865 RSI(405(gh 7 EY0 Other Statutory Actions
3 196 Franchise Injury O 38S Property Damage T3 751 Famuly and Medical 3 891 Agricultural Acts
3 362 Persenal Injury - Product Liability Leave Act J §93 Environmental Matters
Medical Mulpractice 3 790 Other Labor Litigation J 895 Freedom ol Intormation
{ REAL PROPERTY CIVIL RIGHTS PRISONER PETITIONS |7 791 Employee Retwrement FEDERAL TAX SUITS Act
3 210 Land Condemnation 23 440 Other Civil Rights Habeas Corpus: Income Seeurity Act M 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff 3 896 Arbitriticn
3 220 Foreclosure 3 441 Voting 3 463 Alien Detainee ar Detendant) 3 899 Administrative Procedure
3 230 Rent Lease & Ejeciment J 432 Employment 3 510 Motions to Vacate 3 871 IRS—Third Party ActRevicw or Appeal of
O 240 Torts to Land 3 443 Housiny/ Sentence 26 USC 7009 Apency Decision
3 245 Ton Product Liability Accommodations 3 330 General 7 950 Constitutionality of
3 290 AL Other Real Property 3 445 Amer. w/Disabilities < | D 535 Death Penulty IMMIGRATION State Statites
Employmen Other: 73 462 Naturalization Application
3 380 Amer. wiDisabilities - | O 5340 Mandumus & Other | 465 Other Imenigeation
Qther 0 550 Civil Rights Actions
3 448 Education 3 §55 Prison Condition
O 560 Civil Detainee -
Conditions of
Confinement

V. ORIGIN ¢Ptace an “X" in One Box Ondy)

b g Original

a2
Procceding

Removed from a3
State Count

04 O 5 Transferred from 01 6
Anotlier District

(spevifyy

Reinstated or
Reopened

Remanded from
Appellate Court

Multidistrict
Litigation

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

“ie the U S, Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do wot cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
S80S 5B

Briet description of capsc: . i .
ctions for unpaid wagos and/or minimum wage violations

VII. REQUESTED IN

COMPLAINT:

O CHECK IF THIS 1S A CLASS ACTION DEMAND $
UNDER RULE 23, FR.Cv.l,

—

CHECK YES unly if demanded in complaint:
JURY DEMAND:

H Yos

a No

—————"

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)

IF ANY

(Sev instructions):

JUDGE DOCKET NUMBER

DATE

124 \1Lo

SIGNATURE OF ATT LY OF RECORD

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

RECEII'T #

AMOQUNT

APPLYING IFP JUDGE

MAG. JUDGE



ClassAction.org

This complaint is part of ClassAction.org's searchable class action lawsuit database and can be found in this
post: Lawsuit: GuardNow Employees Did Not Receive Final Paychecks



https://www.classaction.org/news/lawsuit-guardnow-employees-did-not-receive-final-paychecks

